9260 E Stockton Bivd.
O-n e I Elk Grove, California 95624

Communications

May 7, 2014

Oregon Public Utility Commission
Attention: Filing Center

P.O. Box 2148

550 Capitol Street N.E., Suite 215
Salem, OR 97301-2551

Fax (503) 373-7752

RE: UM 1431 Compliance Letter — Order No. 10-067

Dear Commission:

In compliance with Appendix A, condition # 2 of the above referenced order, Frontier
Communications Northwest Inc is providing a copy of its Quarterly 10-Q report filing and
inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report for the first quarter 2014.
The quarterly inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report is considered
confidential and should be treated as such. Pursuant to Order 09-197, the “Confidential”
document is being sent via US Mail in a sealed envelope with the proper labeling.

If you have any questions, please contact Renee Willer at (503) 629-2459 or
Renee.Willer@ftr.com or me.

Sincerely,

Joseph D. Chicoine

Manager, Compliance and Reporting
916-686-3588

joe.chicoine@ftr.com

Enclosures

cc: Renee Willer



Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Intercompany Receivables/Payables and Dividends
First Quarter 2014

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount)

Assets ( )=cr
Liabilities ( )=dr Balance Activity Balance
Intercompany Receivables/Payables Dec 31, 2013 First Quarter 2014 Mar 31, 2014

Accounts Receivable - Affiliates
Notes Receivable - Affiliates
Interest Receivable - Affiliates
Accounts Payable - Affiliates
Notes Payable - Affiliates
Accrued Interest - Affiliates

Cash Dividends Declared First Quarter 2014
Frontier Northwest to Parent

Parent to Shareholders (total)

Parent to Shareholders (per share)

Redacted
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2014




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15@f THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2014

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 1p@F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number:_0011001

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 0€-061959€
(State or other jurisdiction ¢ (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
incorporation or organizatiot

3 High Ridge Parl
Stamford, Connecticut 06905
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(203) 6145600

(Registrant's telephone number, including area)code

N/A
(Former name, former address and former fiscal, yeelnanged since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Sectk8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding 12 months (or for such &ngrériod that
the registrant was required to file such repogsy (2) has been subject to such filing requiremétthe past 90 days.

Yes_ X No_

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdmmitted electronically and posted on its corpoiteb site, if any, every Interactive Data Filguied to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rofeof
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months@ostich shorter period that the registrant wasireduo submit and post such files).

Yes_ X  No__

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlsrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting compaS8ge definition of “accelerated filer,” “large &berated filer” and
“smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act).
Yes__ NoX_

The number of shares outstanding of the regiss@®mmon Stock as of May 2, 2014 was 1,002,282,000
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Item 1. Financial Statements

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivable, less allowances of $70,094%¥11¢362, respective

Restricted cas

Prepaid expens¢

Income taxes and other current as
Total current asse

Restricted cas
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Other intangibles, n¢
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Long-term debt due within one ye

Accounts payabl

Advanced billings

Accrued other taxe

Accrued interes

Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxe

Pension and other postretirement ben:
Other liabilities

Long-term deb

Equity:

Common stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000,000 aizibshares
1,002,281,000 and 999,462,000 outstanding, reyegtiand
1,027,986,000 issued, at March 31, 2014 and Dece81h013

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o

Treasury stocl
Total equity

Total liabilities and equit

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in thousands)

(Unaudited)
March 31, 201«

December 31, 201

954,241 $ 880,039
463,081 479,210
11,412 11,411
62,547 68,573
108,133 179,606
1,599,41¢ 1,618,83¢
2,000 2,000
7,190,25¢ 7,255,762
6,337,71¢ 6,337,71¢
1,139,041 1,214,932
200,442 206,232
16,468,87: $ 16,635,48¢
365,625 $ 257,916
218,022 327,256
135,246 137,319
81,076 66,276
202,324 188,639
329,583 324,181
1,331,87¢ 1,301,587
2,396,44¢ 2,417,10¢
713,777 725,333
266,429 262,308
7,762,67: 7,873,667
256,997 256,997
4,181,487 4,321,05¢
115,382 76,108
(257,491 (260,530
(298,699 (338,150
3,097,67; 4,055,481
16,468,87: $ 16,635,48¢

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@@nsolidated Financial Statements.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013
($ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)
2014 2013

Revenue $ 1,154,04¢ $ 1,205,39¢
Operating expense

Network access expens 107,092 109,39¢

Other operating expens 528,92€ 541,49¢

Depreciation and amortizatic 281,407 303,675

Acquisition and integration cos 10,596 -
Total operating expens: 928,021 954,572
Operating incom: 226,025 250,824
Investment and other income, 1| 1,395 4,654
Interest expens 170,957 171,42C

Income before income tax 56,463 84,058
Income tax expens 17,189 33,275
Net income 39,274 50,783
Less: Income attributable to the noncontroll

interest in a partnersh - 2,643
Net income attributable to common sharehol:

of Frontier $ 39,274 $ 48,140
Basic and diluted net income per common sl

attributable to common shareholders of Fror $ 004 3 0.05

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT S OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013
($ in thousands)
(Unaudited)
2014 2013

Net income $ 39,274 $ 50,783
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (see Nok 3,039 6,746
Comprehensive incom 42,313 57,529
Less: Income attributable to t

noncontrolling interest in a partners| - (2,643
Comprehensive income attributable

the common shareholders of Fron $ 42,313 $ 54,886

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oktl@@nsolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance January 1, 20
Stock plan:
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax
Distributions
Balance March 31, 201
Stock plant
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Pension settlement costs, net of
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax
Distributions
Sale of Mohave partnership inter
Balance December 31, 20
Stock plan:
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax
Balance March 31, 201

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, THE NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014
($ and shares in thousands)

(Unaudited)

Shareholders' Equity of Fronti

Accumulatec

Additional Other
Common Stocl Paic-In Retainec C Treasury Stocl Total
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Equity

1,027,98¢ $ 256,997 $ 4,639,56: $ 63,205 $ (483,576 (29,576 $ (368,593 $ 11,675 $ 4,119,271
- - (3,094 - - (279, 2,888 - (2086

- (99,812 - - - - - (99,812

- - 48,140 - - 2,643 50,783

- - 6,746 - - 6,746

- - - - - - - (6,400 (6,400
1,027,98¢ 256,997 4,536,657 111,348 (476,830 (29,855 (365,705 7,918 4,070,382
- - (15,577 - - 1,331 27,555 - 11,978

- (200,024 (99,932 - - - (299,956

- - 64,695 - - 64,695

- - 27,381 - 27,381

- - 188,918 - 188,91¢

- - - - - - - (7,918 (7,918
1,027,98€ 256,997 4,321,05€ 76,108 (260,530 (28,524 (338,150 - 4,055,481
- - (39,345 - - 2,819 39,451 106

- (100,228 - - - - (100,228

- - 39,274 - - 39,274

- - - - 3,039 - - 3,039
1,027,98¢ $ 256,997 $ 4,181,48: $ 115382 $ (257,491 (25,705 $ (298,699 $ $ 3,997,672

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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Cash flows provided by (used in) operating actagt
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashidesl by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expel
Pension/OPEB cos
Stock based compensation expe
Other non-cash adjustments
Deferred income taxe
Change in accounts receival
Change in accounts payable and other liabil

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013

($ in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and athent assets

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing atig:
Capital expenditure- Business operatior
Capital expenditure- Integration activitie:

Network expansion funded by Connect America Fund

Grant funds received for network expansion from @ America Funi

Cash transferred from (to) escr
Other assets purchased and distributions recemnet
Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing atigs:
Long-term debt borrowing
Long-term debt paymen
Dividends paic
Repayment of customer advances for construc
distributions to noncontrolling interests and other
Net cash used by financing activit

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash reclassed to assets held for
Cash and cash equivalents at Janua

Cash and cash equivalents at March

Supplemental cash flow informatic

Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest
Income taxes (refunds), r

2014 2013
$ 39,274 $ 50,783
281,407 303,675

3,053 5,018

6,151 3,885

10,140 1,710

(22,479 (10,133

16,129 48,951

(70,663 (84,756

49,852 40,159

312,864 359,292

(135,059 (189,009

(10,348 B

(6,380 (1,815

3,748 5,998

- (11)

14,217 528

(133,822 (184,309

10,706 -

(14,479 (517,129

(100,228 (99,812

(839, (7,279

(104,840 (624,220

74,202 (449,237

- (1,386

880,03¢ 1,326,537

$ 954,241 $ 875,90¢
$ 145,62C $ 168,095
$ (4,928 $ 947

The accompanying Notes are an integral part okti@msolidated Financial Statements



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

(b

Frontier Communications Corporation and its sulasids are referred to as “we,” “us,” “our,” “Froetj” or the “Company” in this report. Our interirmaudited consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting piieeigenerally accepted in the United States of Acagt).S. GAAP) and should be read in conjunctiaththe consolidated financial statements and
notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfee year ended December 31, 2013 . All sigaiftantercompany balances and transactions haved#einated in consolidation. These interim
unaudited consolidated financial statements inchltladjustments (consisting of normal recurringraels) considered necessary, in the opinion ofifileds management, to present fairly the resuits f
the interim periods shown. Revenues, net incomecastl flows for any interim periods are not neaglysiadicative of results that may be expectedtfee full year. For our interim financial statengnt
as of and for the period ended March 31, 2014 eveduated subsequent events and transactions ientfad recognition or disclosure through the dagt we filed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Frontier had a 33 % controlling general partner interest in a pahgr entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited PartnepsiMohave). Mohave's results of operations werduitied in our consolidated
financial statements through its date of disposaAgpril 1, 2013. The minority interest of the li t®il partners was reflected in the consolidateestants of operations as “Income attributable to the
noncontrolli ng interest in a partnership.” On Agrj 2013, the Company sold its partnership inteiedviohave and received proceeds of $17.8 millibhe Company recognized a gain on sale of
approximately $14.6 million before taxes in teeand quarter of 2013.

The preparation of our interim financial statementsonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managementrtake estimates and assumptions that affectgiyeported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, (i) the Idisare of contingent assets and liabilities, aiijlttie reported amounts of revenue and expensgisgithe reporting period. Actual results may elifrom
those estimates. Estimates and judgments are wiled acco unting for revenue recognition , inclgdihe allowance for doubtful accounts , impairmehtong-lived assets, intangible assets,
depreciation and amortization, income taxes, cgeficies, and pension and other postretirement i®nafmong others. Certain information and footndigclosures have been excluded and/or
condensed pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.

Revenue Recognitian
Revenue is recognized when services are providethen products are delivere d to customers. Revémates billed in advance includes: monthly remgrnetwork access services (including data

services), special access services and monthlyriegwoi ce, video and related charges. The ureghportion of these fees is initially deferred ammponent of “Advanced billings” on our consolieldt
balance sheet and recognized as revenue over filoel pdat the services are provided. Revenueighiaitled in arrears includes: non-recurring netivaccess services (including data services), seitch
access services, non-recur ring voice and videdgices. The earned but unbilled portion of theses fiserecognized as revenue in our consolidateérstatts of operations and accrued in accounts
receivable in the period that the services areifgenls Excise taxes are recognized as a liabilitgnwhilled. Installation fees and their relatededirand incremental costs are initially deferred an
recognized as revenue and expense over the averageof a customer relationship. We recognizeuaeeat period expense the portion of installatiosts that exceeds installation fee revenue.

As required by law, the Company collects variousesafrom its customers and subsequently remitsetkeeees to governmental authorities. Substantglllyof these taxes are recorded through the
consolidated balance sheet and presented on asistib our consolid ated statements of operatMifesalso collect Universal Service Fund (USF) sarghs from customers (primarily federal USF) that
we have recorded on a gross basis in our consetidetaitements of operations and included withinvéRee” and “Other operating expenses ” of $ 29.Mianiand $29. 8 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively .
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(c) Goodwill and Other Intangibles
Goodwill represent s the excess of purchase priee the fair value of identifiable tangible andaingible net assets acquired. We undertake stunlidstermine the fair values of assets and liagditi
acquired and allocate purchase prices to assetdiabilities, including property, plant and equipmtegoodwill and o ther identifiable intangibles.eVénnually (during the fourth quarter) or more
frequently, if appropriate, examine the carryindueaof our goodwill and trade name to determine tiviethere are any impairment | osses. We tesgdodwill impairment at the “operating segment”
level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Owrfeperating segments consist of the following@agi Cen tral, East, National and West. Our regioparating segments are aggregated into one
reportable segment .

The Company amortizes finite-lived intangible asseter their estimated useful lives and reviewshsntangible assets at least annually (during theth quarter) to assess whether any potential
impairment exists and whether factors exist thatldmecessitate a change in useful life and amiffeamortization period.

Recent Accounting Literature
Internal Control— Integrated Framework
On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Ozgtiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedptiated Internal Control — Integrated Framewtir& 2013 Framework) and related illustrative

documents. COSO will continue to make availableoitginal Framework during the transition periodemding to December 15, 2014. The Company currarilizes COSO's original Framework, which
was published in 1992 and is recognized as therigaglidance for designing, implementing and cotidgcinternal controls over external financial refpeg and assessing its effectiveness. The 2013
Framework is expected to help organizations deaighimplement internal control in light of many ogas in business and operating environments sircesssuance of the original Framework, broaden the
application of internal control in addressing opierss and reporting objectives, and clarify theuiegments for determining what constitutes effexiivternal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Fraork
during 2014 and do not expect that it will havegaiicant impact on the Company.

The Transactios:

The 2010 Transaction

On July 1, 2010, the Company acquired the defireséétta and liabilities of the local exchange busireesl related landline activities of Verizon Comiations Inc. (Verizon) in 14 states (the Acquired
Territories), including Internet access and longiatice services and broadband video provided igried customers in the Acquired Territories @Bel0 Acquired Business). Frontier was considened t
acquirer of the 2010 Acquired Business for accangiurposes. All integration activities for the BOlransaction were completed as of the end of 2012.

The AT&T Transaction

On December 17, 2013, the Company announced thatdted into an agreement to acquire the wirgloperties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut (th&T&T Transaction) for a purchase price of $2.0
billion in cash, with ad justments for working c&hi Upon completion of the AT&T Transaction, Frientwill operate AT&T's wireline business and fibeptic network that provides services to residéntia
commercial and whole sale customers in Connecfitwt. Company will also acquire AT&T's U-verse® vidand satellite TV customers in Connecticut.

The Company will account for the AT&T Transactiondccordance with the guidance included in AS@id@805. We incurred $ 10.6 million of acquisitiand integrat ion relat ed costs in connection
with the AT&T Transaction during the three montimsled March 31, 2014. Such costs are requirec texpensed as incurred and are reflected in “Agéprisand integration costs” in our consolidated
statements of operations.



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
(4) Accounts Receivabte
The components of accounts receivable, net arellasvé:
(8 in thousands March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Retail and Wholesale $ 474,278 $ 498,717
Other 58,897 51,855
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (70,094 (71,362
Accounts receivable, n $ 463,081 $ 479,21C

5

6

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts Base our estimate of our ability to collect accaurdgceivable. Bad debt expense, which is recorderaduction to revenue, was $ 12.9 million &nd
16.2 million for the three months ended March 312and 2013, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net is as follows:

(8 in thousands March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Property, plant and equipment $ 14,984,35¢ $ 14,850,691

Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,794,098 (7,594,935
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 7,190,25¢ $ 7,255,762

Depreciation expense is principally based on thrapmsite group method. Depreciation expense was%2dillion and $ 216.7 million for the three mositended March 31, 2014 and 2013 , respect ively.
As a result of an independent study of the estichatenaining useful lives of our plant assets, wepéed new estimated remaining useful lives foraierpl ant assets as of October 1, 2013 , with an
immaterial impact to depreciation expense.

Goodwill andOther Intangibles
The components of goodwill by the reporting uniteffect as of both March 31, 2014 and DecemtePB13 are as follows:

($in thousands)
Central $ 1,815,49¢
East 2,003,57¢
National 1,218,112
West 1,300,53¢«
Total Goodwill $  6,337,71¢



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
The components of other intangibles are as follows:
(8 in thousands March 31, 201« December 31, 201
Gross Carrying Accumulatec Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulatec Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Other Intangibles

Customer bas $ 2,427,648 $ (1,412,743 $ 1,014,90¢ $ 2,427,648 $ (1,336,852 $ 1,090,79¢

Trade name and license 124,13€ - 124,13€ 124,13€ - 124,13€

Total other intangibles $ 2,551,78¢ $ (1,412,743 $ 1,139,041 $ 2,551,78¢ $ (1,336,852 $ 1,214,932

Amortization expense was $ 75.9 million and $08million for the three months ended March 31, 2@hdl 2013 , respectively. Amortization expenseaspnts the amortization of intangible assets
(primarily customer base) that were acquired in26&0 Transaction based on a useful life of ninerydor the residential customer base and 12 yearthe business customer base, amortized on an
accelerated method.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table summarizes the carrying amouamtd estimated fair values for long-term debt atd1a81, 2014 and December 31, 2013 . For ther dithencial instruments including cash, accounts
receivable, long-term debt due within one yearpaots payable and other current liabilities, theyégag amounts approximate fair value due to tHatieely short ma turities of those instrument&ther
equity method investments, for which market valaresnot readily available, are carried at costciviaipproximates fair value.

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimateddrl upon quoted market prices at the reportirggfdathose financial instruments.

($in thousands March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term deb $ 7,762,672 $ 8,343,97¢ $ 7,873,661 $ 8,191,74¢



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(8) LongTerm Debt
The activity in our long-term debt from December 321 3 to March 31, 2014 is summarized as follows:

Three months ende

March 31, 201« Interest
Rate a/
December 31 Payment: New March 31, March 31,
(8 in thousands 2013 and Retirement Borrowings 2014 2014 *
Senior Unsecured De $ 8,107,06¢ $ (14,375 $ - 8 8,092,691 7.95%
Other Secured Debt 13,550 - 10,706 24,256 3.54%
Rural Utilities Service Loan Contracts 8,930 (104 - 8,826 6.15%
Total Long-Term Debt $ 8,129,54¢ ¢ (14,479 $ 10,706 ¢ 8,125,77¢ 7.94%
Less: Debt (Discount)/Premiu 2,037 2,524
Less: Current Portic (257,916 (365,625
$ 7.8 7 7,7 Z

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issce costs a nd debt premiums or discounts. TheeBtteates at March 31, 2014 represent a weightegfage of multiple issuances

10




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
Additional information regarding our Senior UnsesiDebt is as follows:
($in thousands March 31, 201« December 31, 201
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Outstanding Rate Outstanding Rate
Senior Notes and Debentures D
5/1/2014 200,000 8.250% 200,00C 8.250%
3/15/2015 105,026 6.625% 105,02¢ 6.625%
4/15/2015 96,872 7.875% 96,872 7.875%
10/14/2016 * 445,625 3.035% (Variable 460,00C 3.045% (Variable
4/15/2017 606,874 8.250% 606,874 8.250%
10/1/2018 582,738 8.125% 582,73¢ 8.125%
3/15/2019 434,000 7.125% 434,00C 7.125%
4/15/202C 1,021,508 8.500% 1,021,508 8.500%
7/1/2021 500,000 9.250% 500,00C 9.250%
4/15/2022 500,000 8.750% 500,00C 8.750%
1/15/2023 850,000 7.125% 850,00C 7.125%
4/15/2024 750,000 7.625% 750,00C 7.625%
11/1/2025 138,000 7.000% 138,00C 7.000%
8/15/2026 1,739 6.800% 1,739 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,858 7.875% 345,858 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,325 9.000% 945,328 9.000%
10/1/2034 628 7.680% 628 7.680%
7/1/2035 125,000 7.450% 125,00C 7.450%
10/1/204€ 193,500 7.050% 193,50C 7.050%
7,842,691 7,857,06¢€
Subsidiary Senior Notes and Debentures Due:
2/15/2028 200,000 6.730% 200,00C 6.730%
10/15/202¢ 50,000 8.400% 50,000 8.400%
Total $ 8,092,691 7.79% ** 8,107,06¢ 7.78% **

*  Represents borrowings under the Credit Agrest with CoBank.
** |nterest rate represents a weighted averdgleostated interest rates of multiple issuances.

During the first three months of 2014, we entered secured financings totaling $10.7 million witlur year terms and no stated interest rate fdaireequipment purchases.

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment I&ttea bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facilityhd recognized interest expense related to this donemt of $7.5 million during the three months ethde
March 31, 2014 . On January 29, 2014, we entireda bridge loan agreement (the Bridge Loan Ageret) with the Lenders party thereto and JP Moi@hase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent,
pursuant to which the Lenders have agreed at gJasfithe AT&T Transaction to provide to us an unsed bridge loan facility for up to $1.9 billionrfthe purposes of funding (i) substantially alltoé
purchase price for the AT&T Transaction and (i@ fees and expenses incurred in connection withrémsactions contemplated by the stock purchasseagent for the AT&T Transaction. Pursuant to the
Bridge Loan Agreement, if and to the extent we dp ar are unable to, issue debt securities yigldip to $1.9 billion in gross cash proceeds onrior po the closing of the AT&T Transaction, we Bluxaw
down up to $1.9 billion, less the amount of thetdszurities, if any, issued by us on or priortte tlosing of the AT&T Transaction, in aggregatimgpal amount of loans under the Bridge Facilyfund
the purchase price of the AT&T Transaction.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, AGEdministrative agent, lead arranger and ateaeid the other lenders party thereto, for a $bbllion senior unsecured term loan facility with
final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agneent). The entire facility was drawn upon executib the Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repayroéthe outstanding principal balance is made in
quarterly installments in the amount of $14.4 miili which commenced on March 31, 2012, with theaiaing outstanding principal balance to be repaidte final maturity date. Borrowings under the
Credit Agreement bear interest based on the maayiesthe Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Ageset) or LIBO R, a t the election of the Compaimyerest rate margins under the facility (rangiranf
0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and ¥8#53.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subjeciatjustments based on the Total Leverage RatioeoCtmpany, as such term is de fined in the
Credit Agreement. The current pricing on this fiégils LIBOR plus 2.875% .

T he Company has a revolving credit agreement J#llorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agketienders party thereto and the other partietedaherein (the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a
$750.0 million revolving credit facility (the Rewohg Credit Facility) with a scheduled terminatidate of November 3, 2016. As of March 31, 20140 borrowings had been made under the Revolving
Credit F acility. Associated commitment fees unither Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time time depending on the Company’s debt rating &imed in the Revolving Credit Agreement) and were
0.400% per annum as of March 31, 2014 . Duringténen of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Compamay borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may oheters of credit, subject to customary
borrowing conditions. Loans under the Revolvingdiré&acility will bear interest based on the al@mbase rate or the adjusted LIBO R ate (eacletasndined in the Revolving Credit Agreement), & th
Company'’s election, plus a margin based on the @oiyip debt rating (ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% dternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50%djusted LIBO R ate borrowings). The
current pricing on this facility would have bee® D. % or 2.0 0 % , respectively , as of March 31142. Letters of credit issued under the Revol@rgdit Facility will also be subject to fees thairy
depending on the Company’s debt rating. The Rerngl@redit Facility is available for general corperpurposes but may not be u sed to fund dividerytnents.

As of March 31, 2014 , we were in compliance witrohour debt and credit facility financial coventa.
Our principal payments for the next five yearsasdollows as of March 31, 2014 :

Principal

($ in thousands Payment:
2014 (remaining nine montt $ 245,445

2015 $ 262,517
2016 $ 348,143
2017 $ 610,052
2018 $ 583,942
2019 $ 434,565
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(9) Income Taxes:
The following is a reconciliation of the provisifor income taxes computed at federal statutorysraiehe effective rates:

For the three months end

March 31,
2014 2013

Consolidated tax provision at federal statutore 35.0 % 35.0 %
State income tax provisions, net of federal inct

tax benefit 0.3 3.6
Noncontrolling interes - (0.4)
Tax reserve adjustme - 0.4
Changes in certain deferred tax balar (5.1) -
All other, net 0.2 1.0
Effective tax rate 304 % 39.6 %

Income taxes for the three months ended March @14 incl ude the impact of a $ 2.9 million benefising from state tax law changes .

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for whioh statutes of limitations are expected to exgingng the next twelve months and which would etffeur effective tax rate is $ 2.9 million as of ida 31,
2014 .
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(10) Net Income Per Common Share
The reconciliation of the net income per commorrsitalculation is as follows:

For the three months end

($ and shares in thousands, except per share am) March 31,
2014 2013

Net income used for basic and diluted earn
per common shari

Net income attributable to common shareholdersrofifier $ 39,274 $ 48,140
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted saverds (767 (521
Total basic and diluted net income attributabledmmon

shareholders of Fronti $ 38,507 $ 47,619

Basic earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares and unvested restistock

awards outstandin- basic 1,000,96( 998,146
Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stwakds (6,934 (6,273
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 994,02€ 991,873
Basic net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Fronti $ 0.04 $ 0.05
Diluted earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 994,02€ 991,873
Effect of dilutive share 1,502 675
Total weighted average shares outstan- diluted 995,52¢ 992,548
Diluted net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Frontit $ 0.04 $ 0.05

Stock Options

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 , optioqmirchase 83,000 shares (at exercise pricegngafrgm $ 12.50 to $ 14.15 ) and for the three therended March 31, 2013, options to purchase
526,000 shares (at exercise prices ranging frorf.841to $ 14.15 ), issuable under employee compiensplans were excluded from the computation aftdd earnings per share (EPS) for those periods
because the exercise prices were greater tharvénage market price of our common stock and, tbegethe effect wou Id be antidilutive. In calciatdiluted EPS, we apply the treasury stock me twai
include future unearned compensation as part ciskemed proceeds.

Stock Units

At March 31, 2014 and 2013 , we had 1,314,113 a8} 8912 stock units, respectively, issued underMam-Employee Directors’ Deferred Fee Equity PlBxeferred Fee Plan) and the Non-Employee
Directors’ Equity Incentive Plan (Directors’ EquiBlan). These securities have not been includéieimiluted income per share of common stock citicun for the three months ended March 31, 201t an
2013 because their inclusion would have an antidéieffect.

(11) Stock Plans
At March 31, 2014 , we had six stock-based comp@rsalans under which grants were made and awardained outstanding. No further awards may betgd under four of the plans: the 1996 Equity
Incentive Plan (the 1996 EIP), the Amended andd@edt2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 EIP),26@9 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 E IP) andDeéerred Fee Plan. At March 31, 2014 , there were
22,540,761 shares authorized for grant and 14,383Rares available for grant under the 2013 Ednégntive Plan (the 2013 EIP and together with1®@6 EIP, the 2000 EIP and the 2009
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

EIP, the EIPs ) and the Directors’ Equity Plan. @eneral policy is to issue shares from treasugnithe grant of restricted shares and the exeofisptions.

Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company’s Compensatianriltiee, in consultation with the other non-managentirectors of the Company’s Board of Directansl he Committee’s independent executive
compensation consultant, adopted the Frontier LBergn Incentive Plan (the LTIP ). LTIP awards ararged in the form of performance shares. The Li$lurrently offered under the Company’'s 2009
EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of sernée presidents and above. The LTIP awards haviepnance, market and time-vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of eeth-year performance period (a M easurement Pgriadarget number of performance shares are asamieach LTIP participant with respect to the
Measurement Period. The performance metrics uheeTIP are (1) annual targets for operating dish based on a goal set during the first 90 ddysagch year in the three-year Measurement Peridd an
(2) an overall performance “modifier” set duringeftfirst 90 days of the Measurement Period, basetherCompany’s total return to stockholders (i.€atal Shareholder Return or TSR ) relative to the
Integrated Telecommunications Services Group (QT08e 50101020) for the three-year Measurement ®e@perating cash flow performance is determirteti@end of each year and the annual results
will be averaged at the end of the three-year Memsent Period to determine the preliminary numbieshares earned under the LTIP award. The TSPopesnce measure is then applied to decrease or
increase payouts based on the Company'’s threergiedive TSR performance. LTIP awards, to the exézmned, will be paid out in the form of commoacst shortly following the end of the three-year
Measurement Period.

In 2012, the Compensation Committee granted apprately 979, 000 performance shares under the LitPsat the operating cash flow performance goaiHerfirst year in the 2012-2014 Measurement
Period and the TSR modifier for the three-year Meament Period. In 2013, the Compensation Commgtaated approximately 1,124,000 performance shamder the LTIP and set the operating cash
flow performance goal for 2013, which applies te flist year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Periatithe second year of the 2012-2014 Measurementd?e®in February 17 , 2014 , the Compensation
Committee granted 1,028,000 performance shareg tinelé TIP and set the operating cash flow perfarceagoal for 2014, which applies to the first yieathe 2014-2016 Measurement Period , the second
year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and freykar of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period. Tumeber of shares of common stock earned at the eedab three-year Measurement Period may be
more or less than the number of target performahzges granted as a result of operating ¢ ash dlotv TSR performance. An executive must maintaimtesfactory performance rating during the
Measurement Period and must be employed by the &uyrgt the end of the three-year Measurement Periaider for the award to vest. The Compensafiommittee will determine the number of shares
earned for each three year Measurement Perioddru&ey of the year following the end of the Measueat Period.

The following summary presents information regagdirTIP target performance shares as of March 3142hd changes during the three months then enidbdegard to LTIP shares awarded under the
2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP :

Number o

Shares
Balance at January 1, 2014 1,749,00C
LTIP target performance shares grar 1,028,00C
LTIP target performance shares forfeited -
Balance at March 31, 20: 2,777,00C

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 20E3Company recognized an expense of $ 1.0 midizd $0.3 million, respectively, for the LTIP.
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Restricted Stock
The following summary presents information regagdimvested restricted stock as of March 31, 20t4clanges during the three months then ended agérd to restricted stock under the 2009 EIP and
the 2013 EIP:

Weightec
Average
Number of Grant Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 2014 6,234,000 $ 4.80 $ 28,988,000
Restricted stock grante 3,741,00C $ 471 $ 21,359,000
Restricted stock vested (2,254,00C $ 5.25 $ 12,867,00(
Restricted stock forfeite (57,000 $ 4.50
Balance at March 31, 2014 7,664,000 $ 4.63 $  43,764,00(

For purposes of determining compensation expehsdatr value of each restricted stock grant igvested based on the average of the high and lowenarice of a share of our common stock on the dat
grant. Total remaining unrecognized compensatist associated with unvested restricted stock awarddarch 31, 2014 was $ 33.5 million and theghted average period over which this cost is
expected to be recognized is approximately twos/ear

Shares granted during the first three months oB20faled 521,000. The total fair value of shanested and vested at March 31, 2013 was approxiyé2el million and $7.2 million, respectively. The
total fair value of unvested restricted stock atrdha31, 2013 was $21.3 million. The weighted avergmant date fair value of restricted shares gehdteing the three month s ended March 31, 2013 was
$4.09 .

We have granted restricted stock awards to empfoyeehe form of our common stock. None of theried stock awards may be sold, assigned, pledgeatherwise transferred, voluntarily or
involuntarily, by the employees until the resticts lapse, subject to limited exceptions. The igins are time-based. Compensation expense, nedjin “Other operating expenses”, of $ 4.4 milland
$ 3.8 million for the three months ended MarchZ114 and 2013, respectively, has been recordeohinection with these grants.

Stock Options
The following summary presents information regagdiutstanding stock options as of March 31, 20cranges during the three months then ended eggird to options under the EIP s :

Weightec Weightec
Shares Average Average Aggregate
Subject tc Option Price Remaining Intrinsic
Option Per Share Life in Years Value
Balance at January 1, 2014 83,000 $ 13.23 1.8 $
Options grante: - $
Options exercised - $
Options canceled, forfeited or laps - $ -
Balance at March 31, 20: 83,000 $ 13.23 16 $
Exercisable at March 31, 20 83,000 ¢ 13.23 1.6 $

There were no stock o ptions granted during ttee firee months of 2013 . There was no intrinaloe for the stock options outstanding and exeiésat March 31, 2013 .
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(12) Segment Information
We operate in one reportable segment. Frontierighes both regulated and unregulated voice, dadavateo services to residential, business and velatdecustomers and is typically the incumbent voice

services provider in its service areas.
As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the rmggtion criteria to combine our operating segmbetause all of our Frontier properties share aingitonomic characteristics, in that they proviue t

same products and services to similar customeng) wsimparable technologies in all of the stateshiith we operate. The regulatory structure is gahesimilar. Differences in the regulatory regirof a
particular state do not materially impact the ecoitocharacteristics or operating results of a pakir property .

(13) _Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income aref ghins and losses affecting shareholders’ investand pension/postretirement benefit (OPEB) Iligs that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net
income.

The components of accumulated other comprehenssge het of tax at March 31, 2014 and 2013 , aadgés for the three months then ended, are asviollo

Deferred taxes on pension ¢

(8 in thousands Pension Cost OPEB Costt OPEB costt All other Total

Balance at January 1, 20 $ (411,432 $ (5230 $ 156,280 $ (148 $ (260,530
Other comprehensive income before reclassificar - - - 148 148
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmelve los: 4,830 (168, (1,771 - 2,891

Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic 4,830 (168, (1,771 148 3,039

Balance at March 31, 20 $ (406,602 $ (5,398 $ 154509 $ - $ (257,491

Deferred taxes on pension ¢

($ in thousands Pension Cost OPEB Cost: OPEB cost: Al other Total

Balance at January 1, 20 $ (697,874 $ (74,264 $ 288,712 $ (150 $ (483,576
Other comprehensive income before reclassificar (229, - 293 - 64
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmelve los: 10,074 703 (4,095 - 6,682

Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic 9,845 703 (3,802 - 6,746

Balance at March 31, 20: $ (688,029 $ (73,561 $ 284,910 $ (150, $ (476,830
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The significant items reclassified from each comgrof accumulated other comprehensive loss fothtee months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 dadlaws:

$ in thousands Amount Reclassified fror
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L
Details about Accumulated Other Comprehen For the three months ended March Affected Line Item in the Statement Wh¢
Loss Component 2014 2013 Net Income is Presentt
Amortization of Pension Cost Iter™
Prior-service cost $ an s @
Actuarial gains/(losses (4,819 (10,072
(4,830 (10,074 Income before income tax
Tax impact 1,835 3,828 Income tax (expense) bene
$ (2,995 $ (6,246 Netincome
Amortization of OPEB Cost Iten
Prior-service cost $ 890 $ 1,525
Actuarial gains/(losse: (722) (2,228
168 (703 Income before income tax
Tax impact (64) 267 Income tax bene
$ 104 8 (436 Net income

(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses.
(b) These accumulated other comprehensive loss @oemgs are included in the computation of net pligipension and OPEB cost s (see Note 1 4 - Reginelans for additional details).

(14) Retirement Plans
The following tables provide the components of periodic benefit cost:

Pension Benefit
For the three months end

March 31,
2014 2013

($.in thousand)

Components of net periodic pension benefit :

Service cos $ 9,940 $ 12,834
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 19,824 18,880
Expected return on plan ass (23,512 (24,590
Amortization of prior service cost /(cred 11 2
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 4,819 10,072
Net periodic pension benefit cc $ 11,082 $ 17,198
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Postretirement Benefi
Other Than Pensions (OPE
For the three months end

March 31,
2014 2013

($.in thousand)

Components of net periodic postretirement beneft

Service cos $ 2553 § 3,179
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 4,788 4,440
Expected return on plan ass @ (43)
Amortization of prior service cost/(cred (890 (1,525
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 722 2,228
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 7,166 $ 8,279

During the first three months of 201 4 and 201w capitalized $ 3.9 million and $ 4.9 million, pestively, of pension and OPEB expense into thé afsur capital expenditures, as the costs retataur
engineering and plant construction activities. Base current assumptions and plan asset valuesstiraate that our 201 4 pension and OPEB expenifidsevapproximately $65 million to $ 85 million ffo
our current business operations, excluding amocapitalized into the cost of capital expenditu@s,compared to $97.1 million in 2013, excluding ifn@act of pension settlement costs and amounts
capitalized into the cost of capital expendituré&¥e made total cash contributions to our pensiam pluring the three months ended March 31, 2013 1.6 million . An additional cash contribution of
$19.6 million was made on April 15, 2014. We expbat we will make contributions of cash and/oresthssets to our pension plan of approximately $aillon in 2014.

The Compa ny’s pension plan assets have in crédamadb1,2 16.5 million at December 31, 201 3t0%29. 5 million at March 31, 2014 , an in crea58 13.0 million, or 1 % . This in crease iseault
of positive investment returns of $40.3 million azash contributions of $11.6 million, offset byertefit payments of $ 38.9 million during the ffitisree months of 2014 .

(15) _Commitments and Contingencies
We anticipate total capital expenditures for ourrent business operations of approximately $57%anito $ 625 million for 2014 , excluding the exyiiture of funds previously received from th e Cectn
America Fund program. Although we from time to timeake short-term purchasing commitments to venditfsrespect to these expenditures, we generallyale@nter into firm, written contracts for such
activities.

In connection with the pending AT&T Transactione tBompany currently expects to incur operating egps and capital expenditures of approximately $8§on to $275 million in 2014 related to
integration initiatives. The Company incurred $lfillion of operating expenses, consisting ofL.& million and $9.0 million of acquisition and émration costs , respectively , and $10.3 milliooapital
expenditures related to the AT&T Transaction dutimgthree months ended March 31, 2014.

In connection with the 2010 Transaction, the Fed€mmmunications Commission (FCC) and certain stagilatory commissions, in connection with gragttheir approvals of the 2010 Transaction,
specified certain capital expenditure and operateguirements for the Acquired Territories for sfied periods of time post-closing. These requieats focus primarily on certain capital investment
commitments to expand broadband availability teeast 85% of the households throughout the Acquireditories with minimum download speeds of 3 nigaper second (Mbps) by the end of 2013 .
We are required to provide download speeds of 4 dvibpat least 75% , 80% and 85% of the housettbldsighout the Acquired Territories by the end263, 2014 and 2015, respectively . As of
December 31, 2013, we met our FCC requirementdeigie 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the householdsdaMthps coverage to 75% of the households in theuked Territories by the end of 2013. We also
met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps covetagg0% of the households in the Acquired Territofy the end of 2014. As of March 31, 2014 , weaeded broadband availability in excess of 4
Mbps to 83.6 % of the households throughout theuied Territories.

19



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investthenmmitments to three state regulatory commissiaesplaced a total of $115.0 million in cash ieszrow accounts and obtained a letter of credi$180
million in 2010. Another $72.4 milli on of cash @m escrow account was acquired in connection Wit2010 Transaction to be used for service quinitigtives in the state of West Virginia. As ofaith
31, 2014 , $ 176.3 million had been released froenescrow accounts and the Company had a restdagdtibalance in the remaining escrow accountdraggregate amount of $ 11.4 million, including
interest earned. The aggregate amount of thiesaccount will continue to decrease over time eswake the required capital expenditures in WesgiMa . In September 2013, the letter of credittfe
remaining $20 million expired.

In our normal course of business, we have obligationder certain non-cancelable arrangements foices. During 2012, we entered into a “take oy”parrangement for the purchase of future long
distance and carrier services. Our remaining comamrits under the arrangement are $145. 5 million$ir®.8 million for the years ending December 31142and 2015, respectively. As of March 31,
2014 , we expect to utilize the services includétthiw the arrangement and no liability for the “éatir pay” provision has been recorded.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdindividual, class and putative class actionsjimgiin the normal course of our business covesimgde range of matters and types of claims incgdbut
not limited to, general contracts, billing dispyteights of access, taxes and surcharges, consprogction, trademark and patent infringement, eyrplent, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and
disputes with other carriers.

We accrue an expense for pending litigation whendetrmine that an unfavorable outcome is probaht® the amount of the loss can be reasonably estindegal defense costs are expensed as
incurred. None of our existing accruals , aftemsidering insurance coverage, for pending matgensaterial. We constantly monitor our pendingyétion for the purpose of adjusting our accruat$ raavisi

ng our disclosures accordingly, when requiredightion is, however, subject to uncertainty, anel eitcome of any particular matter is not predietalve will vigorously defend our interests fompleng
litigation, and as of this date, we believe that thtimate resolution of all such matters, aftensidering insurance coverage or other indemniteshich we are entitled, will not have a materidverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, tesof operations, or our cash flows.

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April2D04. However, we have retained a potential gaytrobligation associated with our previous eleattility activities in the State of Vermont. Thermont
Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermontitig#, including us, entered into a purchase poaggeement with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreememiins “step-up” provisions that state if any
VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation utitE contract to purchase power from Hydro-Quetien the other VJO participants will assume resjility for the defaulting party’s share on a pro-
rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchasepobligation is 10% . If any member of the VJQadkéts on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebereament, then the remaining members of the VJO,
including us, may be required to pay for a subgbiptdarger share of the VJO's total purchase poalgigation for the remainder of the agreementi¢iwhiuns through 2015). U.S. GAAP rules requirat th
we disclose “the maximum potential amount of futpagments (undiscounted) the guarantor could beinedjto make under the guarantee.” U.S. GAAPsralso state that we must make such disclosure
“... even if the likelihood of the guarantor’s havitgmake any payments under the guarantee is renio#es noted above, our obligation only arises assult of default by another VJO member, such as
upon bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the “maximpotential amount” disclosure requirement we nassume that all members of the VJO simultaneousfiguit, an unlikely scenario given that all VJO
members are regulated utility providers with retedecost recovery. Despite the remote chancestiat an event could occur, or that the State ofridat could or would allow such an event, assurtiirag

all the members of the VJO defaulted on JanuaB01,4 and remained in default for the durationhef tontract (another 2 years), we estimate thatindiscounted purchase obligation for 201 4 through
2015 would be approximately $ 287.4 million. IrcBua scenario, the Company would then own the pamdrcould seek to recover its costs. We wouldhé®by seeking to recover our costs from the
defaulting members and/or reselling the power heotitility providers or the northeast power grithere is an active market for the sale of povwe could potentially lose money if we were unableell

the power at cost. We caution that we cannot ptedih any degree of certainty any potential ooteo
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Item 2. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forwhmoking statements that are subject to risks amcerainties that could cause actual results tfedihaterially from those expressed or implied fie t
statements. Statements that are not historict e forward-looking statements made pursuatttgsafe harbor provisions of The Private Secusritiéigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such aslitee,”
“anticipate,” “expect” and similar expressions areended to identify forward-looking statementsriard-looking statements (including oral represtmis) are only predictions or statements of curpans,
which we review continuously. Forward-looking staents may differ from actual future results duebtat not limited to, and our future results maynhaterially affected by, the following potentiasks or
uncertainties. You should understand that it ispessible to predict or identify all potentialkssor uncertainties. We note the following as aiklist:

Our ability to complete the acquisition of the Ceaticut operations from AT&T
«  The ability to successfully integrate the Connexttmperations of AT&T into our existing operatiol

The risk that the cost savings from the AT&T Tratgan may not be fully realized or may take longerealize than expecte
«  The sufficiency of the assets to be acquired froR&A to enable the combined company to ope the acquired busines
+  Failure to enter into or obtain, or delays in eimginto or obtaining, certain agreements and catsseecessary to operate the acquired businedaraseq;

The failure to obtain, delays in obtaining or aceeconditions contained in any required regulaamyrovals for the AT&T Transactio
« The effects of increased expenses incurred duetitdties related to the AT&T Transactio

+  Disruption from the AT&T Transaction making it madficult to maintain relationships with customenssuppliers

The effects of greater than anticipated competifiom cable, wireless and other wireline carrthatcould require us to implement new pricing, markgtitrategies or new product or service offeringd
the risk that we will not respond on a timely oofitable basis

Reductions in the number of our voice customerswigacannot offset with increases in broadbandailiers and sales of other products and serv
«  Our ability to maintain relationships with customezmployees or suppliel

+ The effects of ongoing changes in the regulatiothefcommunications industry as a result of fedenal state legislation and regulation, or changéke enforcement or interpretation of such legjisiaanc
regulation;

The effects of any unfavorable outcome with respeety current or future legal, governmental gutatory proceedings, audits or dispu
The effects of changes in the availability of fedemd state universal service funding or othesisliees to us and our competito
«  Our ability to successfulladjustto changes in the communications industry and fiément strategies for growt

Continued reductions in switched access revenuasesult of regulation, competition or technolegystitutions
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Our ability to effectively manage service qualitydur territories and meet mandated service quaiisrics;

Our ability to successfully introduce new produffedngs, including our ability to offer bundledrsi&e packages on terms that are both profitablestand attractive to custome
«  The effects of changes in accounting policies acfices adopted voluntarily or as required by galiyeaccepted accounting principles or regulatic

Our ability to effectively manage our operationgemting expenses and capital expenditures, arepay, reduce or refinance our de

The effects of changes in both general and locah@mic conditions on the markets that we serveckvisan affect demand for our products and servimestomer purchasing decisions, collectabilit
revenues and required levels of capital expenditteated to new construction of residences anthesses

The effects of technological changes and competitio our capital expenditures, products and semwffegings, including the lack of assurance that metwork improvements in speed and capacity ve
sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities amality of competing network:

The effects of increased medical expenses (ifuds a result of the impact of the Patient Ptatacand Affordable Care Act) arpknsion and postemployment expenses, such aseretigeical an
severance costs, and related funding requirem

« The effects of changes in income tax rates, tas Jaggulations or rulings, or federal or statedagessment
+  Our ability to successfully renegotiate union caots;

Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the wdlaur pension plan assets, which could requér®unake increased contributions to the pensian jpl 2014 and beyon
+  The effects of economic downturns which could ressudiifficulty in collection of revenues and losEcustomers

+ Adverse changes in the credit markets or in thegatgiven to our debt securities by nationallyradited ratings organizations, which could limitrestrict the availability, or increase the costfimancing
to us;

+  Our cash flow from operations, amount of capitgdenditures, debt service requirements, cash paiddéome taxes and liquidity may affect our paymefrdividends on our common shar

The effects of state regulatory cash managementipea that could limit our ability to transfer baamong our subsidiaries or dividend funds up éoprent company; ar
« The effects of severe weather events such as hoas; tornadoes, ice storms or other natural o-made disastel, whichmay increase our operating expenses or adversgldntustomer reven.
Any of the foregoing events, or other events, caiddse financial information to vary from managetiseforward-looking statemen ts included in thipeet. You should ¢ onsider these important factors
evaluating any statement in this report on FornQ16r otherwise made by us or on our behalf. Thewing information is unaudited and should be réadonjunction with the consolidated financialtstaents
and related notes included in this report. We havebligation to update or revise these forwamking statements and do not undertake to do so.
Investors should also be aware that while we dojasibus times, communicate with securities analyitis against our policy to disclose to themestlely any material non-public information or eth

confidential information. Accordingly, investorsahd not assume that we agree with any statemergpart issued by an analyst irrespective of thetentt of the statement or report. To the extertt rijgorts
issued by securities analysts contain any projestiforecasts or opinions, such reports are notegponsibility.
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Overview
See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated FinandaeSents included in Part I, Item 1 of t his réjfor a discussion of T he Transaction s .

The Company is the largest communications compaayiging services predominantly to rural areas amall and medium-sized towns and cities in the éthitates. The Company currently operates in 27
states and will also operate in Connecticut afeersammation of the AT&T Transaction . The Compayhie nation’s fourth largest Incumbent Local ExgeCarrier (ILEC), with 3.1 million customers, 1.9
million broadband connections and 13, 700 emplogsesf March 31, 2014 .

Requlatory Developments

In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulergakioking at rules to “Preserve a Free and Opéerret,” (i.e., net neutrality) , including a restderation of the legal classification of broadbaamdi
proposed restrictions on broadband network managepractices. On December 21, 2010, the FCC adapteatder imposing some regulations on Internetiseproviders. These regulations affect fixed and
mobile broadband providers differently. These fatiopns became effective November 20, 2011, andngein compliance with these regulations. On Jantid, 2014, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C.
Circuit vacated the portions of the FCC's ruled fivahibited blocking and required non-discrimingttreatment. The Chairman of the FCC has statethtention to preserve the spirit of the vacatdds. The
D.C. Circuit’s ruling may be appealed or the FCGyriake other regulatory actions to implement “Opeernet” policies. The future state of these tegions and their effect on us is unknown.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted an Ordeeftom the Federal Universal Service High-Cost FUhSF ) and Intercarrier C ompensation (the Ordene Order changed how federal subsidies are
calculated and disbursed, with these changes hiaged-in beginning in July 2012. These changesitian the USF , which supports voice servicehigh-cost areas, to the Connect America Fund (CAF),
which supports broadband deployment in high-casasrCAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, provider dfigoing USF suppo rt for price cap carriers cdpatethe 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in thst f
round of CAF Phase | made available for price ¢#&f0s an additional $ 300 million in incremental iigost broadband support to be used for broadteptbyment to unserved areas. In 2012 and earlg 201
we received $71.9 million in CAF Phase | funds aritially recorded such funds as increases to Gash Other liabilities in the balance sheet. The.$Hiillion in the first round of CAF Phase | suppis
expected to enable an incremental 92,877 houselimtdsroadband service and was accounted for agriBotion s in Aid of Construction . We are requireo implement, spend and enable these 92,877
households no later than July 24, 2015. We spéht $nillion of these CAF funds on network expansihuring the first quarter of 2014 and $ 44.0 milliof the CAF funds to date through March 31, 2014,
enabling 70,000 households.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@udborizing a second round of CAF Phase |. As glthis May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC exjeainthe areas eligible for funding to include those
that lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbgeadh In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from #eeond round of CAF Phase | and in December 204 F@C awarded $57.6 million to us to serve 94,899
locations in our high-cost, unserved and underskaveas across multiple states. The FCC alsoumeed on January 10, 2014, that Frontier was édiddy an additional $3.7 million in fun ding serve 6,815
locations. We received these funds in February 20hé second round of CAF Phase | includes cegedompanying spending requirements from the Compamy our capital expenditure plans take this into
account. The CAF funds received are accountedsf@antributions in Aid of Construction and werdially recorded as increases to Cash and Othetitieb on the balance sheet.

The Order also reformed Intercarrier Compensatidrich is the payment framework that governs howiear compensate each other for the exchange exfstate traffic, and it began a multi-year traositin
July 2012, with the second step implemented in 2043. The transition will move terminating trafto a near zero rate by 2017. Frontier expectsetable to recover a significant portion of thoseenues
through end user rates and other replacement supgmhanisms. The Order has been challenged bgircgrarties in court and certain parties have péiiioned the FCC to reconsider various aspecthef
Order. Accordingly, we cannot predict the long-téempact at this time but believe that the Ordel pibvide a stable regulatory framework to factét@ur ongoing focus on the deployment of broadbatoadour
rural markets.

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order requirediipirs to pay interstate access rates for the retioin of VolP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, tHeCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specifietl thanges
to originating access rates for VolP traffic wiitrbe implemented until July 2014. The Order hanhghallenged by certain parties in court and terta
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parties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsidgous aspects of the Order. T he net impadt@fQrder during the period from July 2012 througlrd 2014 was immaterial.
Certain states also have their own open proceedingsidress reform to intrastate access chargesthed intercarrier compensation and state univeesaice funds. Although the FCC has pre-emptates

jurisdiction on most access charges, many statelsl @mnsider moving forward with their proceedinige cannot predict when or how these matters weiltcided or the effect on our subsid y or switched
access revenues.
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The following should be read in conjunction witkrit 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofiRaial Condition and Results of Operations” inchlide our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 .

(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2014 , we had cash and cash earitelggregating $ 954.2 million, excluding totstricted cash , primarily representing funds egetbfor future broadband expansion and serviceitgual
initiatives , of $ 1 3.4 million. Our primary soerof funds continued to be cash generated fromatipes. For the three months ended March 31, 20&stused cash flow from operations, cash on hadddabt
proceeds to fund principally all of our cash inirggtand financing activities, primarily capital explitures, dividends and debt repayments.

We have a revolving credit facility with a line ofedit of $750.0 million that we believe providesfiient flexibility to meet our liquidity needsAs of March 31, 2014 , we had not made any bomgsiunder
this facility.

At March 31, 2014 , we had a working capital suspdfi $ 267.5 million. We believe our operating c#islvs, existing cash balances, and existing remgleredit facility will be adequate to finance auorking
capital requirements, fund capital expendituresken@quired debt payments, pay taxes, pay dividémdsur stockholders, and support our short-terih lang-term operating strategies for the next teelv
months . However, a number of factors, including ot limited to, losses of customers, pricing pree from increased competition, lower subsidy swidched access revenues, and the impact of thrergur
economic environment may negatively impact our ggferated from operations. In addition, basethfammation available to us, we believe that thraficial institutions syndicated under our revolvingdit
facility would be able to fulfill their commitments us, but this could change in the future. Adaich 31, 2014 , we had $ 245.4 million of debtumiag during the last nine months of 2014 ; $.362illion
and $ 348.1 million of debt will matur e in 201158201 6 , respectively.

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities deddii$e46.4 million, or 13 %, for the three months eshdlarch 31, 2014 , as compar ed with the prior pesiod. The decrease was primarily the resulower
revenue and net income before depreciation andtamation.

We received $ 4.9 million in cash tax refunds dgrthe first three months of 201 4 as compared@®$nillion in net cash taxes paid during thetfirsee months of 2013 . Our 2013 cash taxes pdliect ed the
continued impact of bonus depreciation in accordanith the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012.s&ht any legislative changes, w e expect that lh20ur cash tax payments for the full year will be
approximately $1 30 million to $16 0 million for baurrent business operations , taking into antour estimated pre-close integration expendittekging to the AT&T Transaction .

In connection with the pending AT&T Transactione tBompany recognized $ 10.6 million of acquisitior integration costs incurred during the firseéhmonths of 2014 and $ 7.5 million of interestenge
related to the Bridge Facility commitment. The Qamy expects to incur operating expenses of apmately $140 million to $170 million in 2014 relatéal integration activities for the pending AT&T
Transaction.

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2018 capital expenditures were $ 145.4 million 8nb89.0 million (including $ 10.3 million of integtion-related capital expenditures for the thremths

ended March 31, 2014 for the AT&T Transaction)pesgively . In addition to the capital expenditsimentioned above, n etwork expansion funded &yiqusly received CAF funds amounted to $ 6.4 oiilli
and $ 1.8 million for the three months ended M&th2014 and 2013 , respectively. We anticipatgital expenditures for business operations toedese in 201 4 related to our currently owned @ntigs to
approximately $ 575 million to $62 5 million, asnapared to $ 634.7 million in 201 3. We anticipateaalditional $85 million to $105 million of capitakpenditures in 2014 related to the integratidividies of

the pending AT&T Transaction.
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Cash Flows used tand provided fronfrinancing Activities

DebtFinancings
During the first three months of 2014, we entered secured financings totaling $10.7 million witlur year terms and no stated interest rate faaireequipment purchases.

Debt Reduction
During the first three months of 2014 and 2013 reteed an aggregate principal amount of $ 14.%ieniland $517.1 million, respectively, of debt cisting of $ 14.4 million and $517.0 million, respigely, of
senior unsecured debt and $0.1 million of rurditiets service loan contracts for each period .

We may from time to time make additional repurclsasiour debt in the open market, through tendfaref exchanges of debt securities, by exercidgitfs to call or in privately negotiated transastioWe
may also refinance existing debt or exchange exjstiebt for newly issued debt obligations. We dbexpect the additional financing of $1.9 billidmat will be used for the AT&T Transaction to affextr
current refinancing plans.

Bridge Facility

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment Iédtea bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facilityhd recognized interest expense related to this doment of $7.5 million during the three months ethde
March 31, 2014. On January 29, 2014, we enteredariiridge loan agreement with the Lenders padyetb and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as admiriigragent (the Bridge Loan Agreement), pursuant to
which the Lenders have agreed at closing of the ATRansaction to provide to us an unsecured bridge facility for up to $1.9 billion for the purpes of funding (i) substantially all of the purchasie for

the AT&T Transaction and (i) the fees and experisesrred in connection with the transactions contlated by the stock purchase agreement for the AT#ansaction. Pursuant to the Bridge Loan Agregmen
if and to the extent we do not, or are unablessyé debt securities yielding up to $1.9 billioryinss cash proceeds on or prior to the closintg@AT&T Transaction, we shall draw down up to $tilflon, less
the amount of the debt securities, if any, issuedson or prior to the closing of the AT&T Transen, in aggregate principal amount of loans urtlerBridge Facility to fund the purchase pricetwf AT&T
Transaction.

Bank Financing

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, AGBdministrative agent, lead arranger and &teadd the other lenders party thereto, for a 5l lion senior unsecured term loan facility kv final
maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agreemerithe entire facility was drawn upon executiorthe Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repaymethebutstanding principal balance is made in guigrt
installments in the amount of $14.4 million, whitbmmenced on March 31, 2012, with the remainingtantling principal balance to be repaid on the fimgturity date. Borrowings under the Credit Agnest
bear interest based on the margins over the Base(&adefined in the Credit Agreement) or LIBORthe election of the Company. Interest rate nmrginder the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.8« for
Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBf@Rowings) are subject to adjustments based e thal Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such temefined in the Credit Agreement. The current
pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875%.

RevolvingCredit Facility

T he Company has a revolving credit agreement tlorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative adkatlenders party thereto and the other partiesedaherein (the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a
$750.0 million revolving credit facility (the Rewohg Credit Facility) with a scheduled terminatidate of November 3, 2016. As of March 31, 2014baoowings had been made under the Revolving CFedit
acility. Associated commitment fees under the Reéngl Credit Facility will vary from time to time gending on the Company’s debt rating (as definetiénRevolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.400% pe
annum as of March 31, 2014. During the term ofRlezolving Credit Facility, the Company may borraepay and reborrow funds, and may obtain lettersredit, subject to customary borrowing conditions.
Loans under the Revolving Credit Facility will beaterest based on the alternate base rate ordjbsted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the RévglCredit Agreement), at the Company’s electidos@
margin based on the Company'’s debt rating (ranffimg 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate bomgeiand 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate lwings). The current pricing on this facility would
have been 1.00% or 2.00%, respec tively, as of Mafc 2014. Letters of credit issued under the Réwy Credit Facility will also be subject to fedsat vary depending on the Company’s debt ratirige T
Revolving Credit Facility is available for genecalrporate purposes but may not be u sed to furidetdid payments.
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Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indewstuee Credit Agreement, the Revolving Crediteégnent and the Bridge Loan Agreement includeithely payment of principal and interest when die, t
maintenance of our corporate existence, keepinggorbooks and records in accordance with U.S. GAAStrictions on the incurrence of liens on ouetssand restrictions on asset sales and transfergers
and other changes in corporate control. We aresuloject to restrictions on the payment of divideeitiser by contract, rule or regulation, other thiaat imposed by the General Corporation Law ofStete of
Delaware. However, we would be restricted underGhedit Agreement , the Revolving Credit Agreetn@nd the Bridge Loan Agreement from declaring dévids if an event of default occurred and was
continuing at the time or would result from theidend declaration.

The Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agrest each contain a maximum leverage ratio covenamdter those covenants, we are required to mairtaatio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash and
cash equivalents (including restricted cash) ireesof $50.0 million to (ii) consolidated adjusEBITDA (as defined in the agreements) over theftast quarters not to exceed 4.50 to 1.

The Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreemére Bridge Loan Agreement and certain indenttmesur senior unsecured debt obligations limit ability to create liens or merge or consolidatthw
other companies and our subsidiaries’ ability to®e funds, subject to important exceptions andifications.

As of March 31, 2014 , we were in compliance wittohour debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We currently intend to pay regular quarterly divids. Our ability to fund a regular quarterly diefi will be impacted by our ability to generatetcél®m operations. The declarations and paymeifitofe
dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Bires, and will depend upon many factors, including financial condition, results of operationspwth prospects, funding requirements, applicable, la
restrictions in agreements governing our indebteslia@d other factors our Board of Directors dedevaat.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrang&ménansactions, obligations or other relationshifith unconsolidated entities that would be exgéd¢b have a material current or future effect upan
financial statements.

Euture Commitments

In our normal course of business we have obligatiomer certain non-cancelable arrangements feicesr During 2012, we entered into a “take or’mayangement for the purchase of future long distaand
carrier services. Our remaining commitments unberarrangement are $145. 5 million and $140.8anilfor the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2@Epectively. As of March 31, 2014 , we expect t
utilize the services included within the arrangetraend no liability for the “take or pay” provisidras been recorded.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investhenmmitments to three state regulatory commissiamsplaced a total of $115.0 million in cash is&veral escrow accounts and obtained a lettereafitcior
$190.0 million in 2010. Another $72.4 million oésh in an escrow account was acquired in conneutitinthe 2010 Transaction to be used for servigality initiatives in the state of West Virginias/of
March 31, 2014, $176.3 million had been releasenhfthe escrow accounts. As of March 31, 20140bepany had a restricted cash balance in the rémgagiscrow account of $11.4 million, including irgst
earned. The aggregate amount of this escrow acedglimontinue to decrease over time as we make¢heired capital expenditures in West VirginiaSeptember 2013, the letter of credit for the rengi $20
million expired.

In addition, the FCC and certain state regulatempmissions, in connection with granting their appie of the 2010 Transaction, specified certairitabpxpenditure and operating requirements forAbguired
Territories for specified periods of time post-dtms These requirements focus primarily on certaipital investment commitments to expand broadizadability to at least 85% of the households tigteout

the Acquired Territories with minimum download sgeef 3 Mbps by the end of 2013 . We are requiceprovide download speeds of 4 Mbps to at least, % and 85% of the households throughout the
Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 afd3 respectively. As of December 31, 2013, we onet~CC requirement to provide 3 Mbps coverage5& ®&f the households and 4 Mbps coverage to 75%
of the households in the Acquired Territories by émd of 2013. We also met our FCC requirementduigle 4 Mbps coverage to 80% of the
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households in the Acquired Territories by the ehadi4. As of March 31, 2014 , we expanded broadlzasmilability in excess of 4 Mbps to 83.6 % of timuseholds throughout the Acquired Territories.

As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 , weelxpdnded our broadband availability to the houlsishiiroughout the Company 's territories as folow

As of As of
(In excess of March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
1 Mbps 90% 90%
3 Mbps 88% 86%
4 Mbps 86% 83%
6 Mbps 83% 76%
12 Mbps 74% 61%
20 Mbps 53% 48%

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting oonsolidated financial statements on a recurringstered record the effect of any necessary adjustpréor to their publication. Uncertainties witbspect to such
estimates and assumptions are inherent in the ratipa of financial statements; accordingly, ipisssible that actual results could differ from #hestimates and changes to estimates could octhe inear
term. The preparation of our interim financialtetaents in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires magagnt to make estimates and assumptions that &ffélce reported amounts of assets and liabilidiethe

date of the financial statements, (ii) the disctesof contingent assets and liabilities, and (hi¢ reported amounts of revenue and expenses dilmngeporting period. Actual results may diffeorh those
estimates. Estimates and judgments are used vdeeruating for revenue recognition including thiewhnce for doubtful accounts , impairment of Idivgd assets, impairment of intangible assets, efgation

and amortization, pension and other postretirernengfits, in come taxes and contingencies, amdmgysit

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting estimates with Auelit Committee of our Board of Directors and éurdit Committee has reviewed our disclosures negpti
to such estimates.

There have been no material changes to our criicabunting policies and estimates from the infdimmaprovided in Item 7. “Management’s Discussiord &Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included in our Annual Report on For@aKlLfor the year ended December 31, 2013 .

New Accounting Pronouncements
There were no new accounting standards issueddopte by the Company during the first three monft014 , or that have been issued but are nefinedjto be adopted until future periods, with amgterial

financial statement impact.

Internal Control—Integrated Framework
On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Ogtiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedipdated Internal Control — Integrated Framewthik 013 Framework) and related illustrative

documents. COSO will continue to make availableitginal Framework during the transition periodesd ing to December 15, 2014. The Company cuyrertiizes COSO's original Framework , which was
published in 1992 and is recognized as the leaglindance for designing, implementing and conductitigrnal controls over external financial repogtiand assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 Frarkes/o
expected to help organizations design and implerim¢etnal control in light of many changes in besis and operating environments since the issudntte @riginal Framework, broaden the applicatién o
internal control in addressing operations and rapgobjectives, and clarify the requirements fetedmining what constitutes effective internal cohtWe plan to adopt the 2013 Framework in 2014 dm not
expect that it will have a significant impact or tBompany.
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(b) Results of Operations
REVENUE

Revenue is generated pri marily through the prowisif voice services, data services , video sesvjaeetwork access, carrier services and otherriet services. Such revenues are generated theitiger a
monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usage rewghue recognition is not dependent upon signifigudgments by management, with the exceptiandstermination of a provision for uncollectibleamts.

Revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2@&dreased $ 51.4 million, or 4 %, to $ 1,154.Mioni as compared with the three months ended M&6g2013. The decline during the first three mernh
201 4 is primarily the result of decreases irceaervices revenues and lower switched and narteedtaccess revenue, partially offset by an ineréaslata services revenue, each as described i detail
below. Additionally, wireless revenue decrease® By8 million for the three months ended MarchZ114 due to the sale of our Mohave Cellular Limiadtnership (Mohave) interest on April 1, 2013.

Switched access and subsidy revenue of $ 133.Jomilepresented 12 % of ou r revenues for the thmeeths ended March 31, 2014. Switched access uevenas $ 53.2 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 , or 5 % of our revenues, down f#®62.3 million, or 5 % of our revenues, for theetamonths ended March 31, 2013. Subsidy revenu&wa0 m illion, or 7 % of our revenues, for theee
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivalye expect declining revenue trends in switchezkss and subsidy revenue to continue duringethainder of 2014 .

During the first quarter of 2014 , we lost 14,0@@tomers, net, as compared to a loss of 32,900roess$ , net, during the first quarter of 2013 . Mé&eve the improved customer retention in 201 4caspared
to 201 3 is due to simplified products and priciagr local engagement strategy, improved custoemice and our investments in our network.

Total residential revenue for the three months ehd#larch 31, 2014 declined $ 18.6 million, or 4, #s compared to the three months ended MarcR(RB primarily as a result of decreases in voiceises
revenue and the sale of our interest in the Molpavenership , partially offset by increases in daevices revenue and increases in subscribecliasges due to additional access recovery chafese access
recovery charges are a result of regulatory chargated to Intercarrier Compensation reform aredexpected to continue to increase, as allowed&yCC to partially offset regulatory mandated ihed in
switched access rates. We had approximately 2,0040d 2,859,000 total residential customers ddavth 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We lost @gprately 9,600 and 27,800 residential customeuet,,
during the quarter s ended March 31, 2014 and 2@Bpectively, principally driven by declines inia® customers , and our residential customer mprthlrn was 1.63 % and 1.64% for the quarter s@nde
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Averagatiip residential revenue per customer (res ideAfRPC) increased $0.2 8, or 0.5 %, to $59.07 dytire three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared
the three months ended March 31, 2013 .  Theadvacrease in residential ARPC is primarily doethe shift in product mix to a higher percenta§iéhe Company’s residential customers that takadiivand
services as compared to voice only customers .Gdrapany expects continuing improvements in dateices revenue, primarily driven by increased br@adbcustomers , and continuing declines in voice
services revenue .

Total business revenue for the three months endadiV31, 2014 declined $ 23.6 million, or 4 %s compared to the three months ended March 3B, 20frincipally as a result of decreases in auice/
services revenue and wireless backhaul . We pptbgimately 266,400 and 281,100 total businessoouers as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiW/ly.lost approximately 4,400 and 5,100 business
customers , net, during the quarter s ended Mait¢l2014 and 2013, respectively. Average morihlsiness revenue per customer (business ARPGaised $ 6. 66 , or 1. 0 %, to $ 651.53 during lheet
months ended March 31, 2014 as compared to the theamths ended March 31, 2013 . The overall asgén business ARPC is primarily due to decliringtomer counts for our small business customaets th
carry a lower ARPC. The Company expects the dexlimeoice services revenues and wireless batkbaenues from business customers to continu®ir 2mitigated, in part, by increases in data sesvi
revenues.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014 Gbmpany added approximately 37,200 net broadbabscsbers. During the first three months of 2018e Company added approximately 28,200 net
broadband subscri bers. As of March 31, 2014 ,amately 74 % of our residential broadband custemexcluding multiple dwelling units and wireldggh speed internet, subscribe d to a bundle ofcsss.

As of March 31, 2014, we were able to offer broaubt approximately 6.5 million households, or 90f4he 7.2 million households in our markets. Tin@ease in broadband subscribers contributed to ou
improved data services revenue performance. Wenanto invest in network speed and capacity tgsttpour goal of

29



PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

increasing broadband penetration and market shéfe expect to continue to increase broadband sbless d uring the remainder of 2014 .

Management believes that customer counts and avenagthly revenue per customer are important feitoevaluating our trends. Among the key servigesrovide to residential customers are voiceiserv
data service and video service . We continuexpoee the potential to provide additional servitesur customer base, with the objective of meetih of our customers’ communications needs, a age
increasing revenue per customer. For businessroess we provide voice and data services, as welllzroad range of value-added services.

In the section “Other Financial and Operating Ddtalow is a table that presents customer counesage monthly revenue per customer and customenchiualso categorizes revenue into customermege

( residential and business) and regulatory revesugiched access and subsidy revenue). The deiclitiee number of customers was partially offsetifbgreased penetration of additional higher revenue
generating products sold to both residential arginess customers, which has increased our averagthly revenue per customer. Economic conditiansubstantial further loss of customers, and irsinga
competition could make it more difficult to sellrobundled service offerings, and cause us to irser@r promotions and/or lower our prices for quaducts and services, which w ould adversely affec

revenue, profitability and cash flows.

OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

As of March 31, 201 As of December 31, 201 % Increase (Decreas As of March 31, 201 % Increase (Decreas
Customers 3,060,28(C 3,074,28( (0)% 3,140,281 (3)%
Broadband subscribers 1,903,82¢ 1,866,67( 2% 1,782,59¢ 7%
Video subscribers 390,334 385,352 1% 364,961 7%
For the three months ended March $ Increast % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Revenue (in 000's):
Residential” $ 495964 $ 514,52 $ (18,561 (4%
Business” 524,974 548,612 (23,639 (4%
Customer revenu 1,020,93¢ 1,063,13¢ (42,200 (4
Switched access and subs 133,108 142,25¢ (9.150 ©%
Total revenue $ 1,154,046 $ 1,20539% $ (51,350 (4%
Switched access minutes of t 3,943 4,290 (8)%
(in millions)
As of or for the three months ended March % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease
Residential Customer Metrics:
Customer: 2,793,90¢ 2,859,22¢ 2%
Revenue (in 000'<” $ 495964 $ 514,528 (@)%
Average monthly residenti
revenue per custom ® $ 50.07 $ 58.79 0%
Customer monthly chur 1.63% 1.64% (L)%
Business Customer Metrics
Customers 266,372 281,052 (5)%
Revenue (in 000'<” $ 524,974 $ 548,612 (@)%
Average monthly busine:
@ $ 65153 $ 644.87 1%

revenue per custom

® Revised from the previously disclosed amounmt®flect the reclassification of certain revena&$273 from residential to business for the fisarter of 2013 .
@ Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular Lirdifartnership (Mohave), which was sold to Verizoineliéss on April 1,
2013.
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REVENUE
($.in thousand) For the three months ended March
$ Increast % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Voice service: $ 482,319 $ 525944 $ (43,625 8)%
Data and internet servic 461,496 454,836 6,660 1%
Other 77,123 82,358 (5,235 (6)%
Customer revenu 1,020,93¢ 1,063,13¢ (42,200 (4%
Switched access and subs 133,108 142,258 (9,150 (6)%
Total revenue $ 1,154,046 $ 1,205,3%€ $ (51,350 (4)%

Voice Services

Voice services revenue for the three months endartiM31, 2014 decreased $ 43.6 million, &,80 $ 482.3 million , as compared with the éhneonths ended March 31, 2013 , primarily due & th
continued loss of voice customers and, to a lemsient, decreases in long distance services reveamiliéndividual features packages , partially dffseincrease d local voice charges to resideatid business
end users to the extent permitted by the Orderaland enhanced services revenue for the threehmemded March 31, 2014 decreased $ 36.9 mikio® %, to $ 395.8 million , primarily due toet
continued loss of voice customers and, to a lemsent, decreases in individual features packagsially offset by increase d local voice chargesesidential and business end users to the ¢ pégmitted by
the Order. Long distance services revenue forttreetmonths ended March 31, 2014 decreased rifliah, or 7 %, to $ 86.5 million, primarily due lower minutes of use driven by fewer customerartially
offset by increased cost recovery surcharge rates .

Data and I nternet Services

Data and Internet services revenue for the threetimscended March 31, 2014 increased $ 6.7 millior 1 %, to $ 461.5 million, as compared wita three months ended March 31, 2013 . Datdcesv
revenue increased $ 20.7 million, or 9 %, to $.244illion for the three months ended March 3114, as compar ed with the same period of 20X8mapily due to increases in the number of broadban
customers and sales of Frontier Secure productsf Adarch 31, 2014 , the number of the Companyabdband subscribers increased by approximately2@@1, or 7 %, since March 31, 2013 . Data and
Internet services also includes nonswitched acemssnue from data transmission services to othetecs and high-volume business customers with adged hig h-capacity Internet and E thernet ciscuit
Nonswitched access revenue decreased $ 14.1midio6 %, to $ 219.4 million , for the three fmended March 31, 2014 , as compared with thepacable period of 201 3, primarily due to lower
monthly recurring charges attributable to a redurcth wireless backhaul and other business revenpasially offset by the favorable impact of disps with carriers and lower customer credits ari@r servi
ces excluding wireless backhaul decreased slighglyye continue to provide network bandwidth teodommunications carriers. We expect wireless dsage to continue to increase, which may drivendel

for additional wireless backhaul capacity. Desiite need for additional capacity, we expect to eepee declines in wireless backhaul revenue througthe remainder of 2014 , as co mpared to theesa
periods of the prior year , as our carrier partmeigrate to Ethernet solutions at a lower pricenpoi

Other
Other revenue for the three months ended Marcl2@14 decreased $ 5.2 million, or 6 %, to $ Tillion, as compared with the three months endedch81, 2013 , primarily due to lower wireless newe
associated with the sale of our interest in the detp artnership on April 1, 2013 and lower diregtervices revenue , partially offset by lower lotht expenses that are charged against revenue .

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenue for the theeghm ended March 31, 2014 decreased $ 9.2iomibr 6 %, to $ 133.1 million, as compared wtitie three months ended March 31, 2013 . Switcheelsac
revenue decreased $ 9.1 million, or 15 %, to & Bdllion, for the first three months of 2014 , @ampared with the s ame period of 2013 , primatilg to the impact of a decline in minutes of usated to
access line losses and the displacement of minfitese by wireless, email an d other communicatsmrsices combined with a reduction due to the thpéthe lower rates enacted by the FCC's interear
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compensation reform in July 2013 . Switched a&@sl subsidy revenue includes subsidy paymenteeeave from federal and state agencies, includingharges billed to customers that are remitted to
universal service administrators. Subsidy reverueained flat at $ 80.0 million for the three manémded March 31, 2014 .

Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (wiedbiled to customers and remitted to universatise administrators) for the Company were $ 42itian, $ 7.9 million and $ 29.9 million, respectily, and $
80.0 million in total, or 7 % of our revenues, toe three months ended March 31, 2014 . The federhstate subsidy revenue for the three monttedeMarch 31, 2014 represents 4 % of our conselitlat
revenues. Total federal and state subsidies antiawges were $ 80.0 million, or 7 % of our revenfmsthe three months ended March 31, 2013 .

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Ordeefeom the USF and Intercarrier Compensation. Thae©changed how federal subsidies are calculatdddsbursed, with these changes being phased-in
beginning in July 2012. These changes transitiendBF , which supports voice services in high-essgs, to the CAF, which supports broadband depayim high-cost areas. CAF Phase |, implemented in
2012, provide d for ongoing USF support for prie@ carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In additienFCC in the first round of CAF Phase | madelabte for price cap ILECs an additional $300 noiffiin
incremental high-cost broadband support to be fmebroadban d deployment to unserved areas. 12 208 early 2013, we received $71.9 million in fingt round of CAF Phase | funds. The $71.9 million

the first round of CAF Phase | support is expetteenable an incremental 92,877 households fordimarad service and was accounted for as Contrititioiid of Construction. We are required to spénel
CAF Phase | funds to enable these 92,877 householdster than July 24, 2015. We initially recatdmich funds as increases to Cash and Other fiebiln the balance sheet. We spent $ 44.0 mitliothe
previously received CAF funds on network expansifonugh March 31, 2014.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@udborizing a second round of CAF Phase |. As glthis May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC exjeainthe areas eligible for funding to include those
that lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbdsath In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from gexond round of CAF Phase | and in December 2864 F€C awarded $57.6 million to us to serve 94,899
locations in our high-cost, unserved and underskareas across multiple states. The FCC also aoedwn January 10, 2014, that Frontier was etiditnl an additional $3.7 million in funding torse 6,815
locations. We received these funds in Februaryt2@he second round of CAF Phase | includes cesabompanying spending requirements from the Conpard our capital expenditure plans take this into
account.

The Order also makes changes to Intercarrier Cosaien. Intercarrier Compensation, which is therpagt framework that governs how carriers compensath other for the exchange of interstate traffic,
began a multi-year transition in July 2012, witke gecond step implemented in July 2013. The tiansiill move terminating traffic to a near zerate by 2017. We expect to be able to recover aftsignt
portion of those revenues through end user raté#rer replacement support mechanisms . We dexpect these changes to have a materia | impastiorevenues in 2014 .

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order requirediipiers to pay interstate access rates for the tetioin of VolP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, tHeCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specifietl¢thanges
to originating access rates for VolP traffic wiitrbe implemented until July 2014. The Order hanbehallenged by certain parties in court and teparties have also petitioned the FCC to recamsidrious
aspects of the Order. T he net impact of the Qiddeing the period from July 2012 through March 20das immaterial.

Certain states also have their own open proceedigsldress reform to intrastate access chargesthed intercarrier compensation and state uniVeeaice funds. Although the FCC has pre-emptatkest

jurisdiction on most access charges, many statalsl consider moving forward with their proceedingé cannot predict when or how these matters willecided or the effect on our subsidy or switchezkss
revenues.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES
($.in thousand) For the three months ended March
$ Increas¢ % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Network access expens $ 107,092 $ 109,398 $ (2,306 (2)%

Network access expenses for the three months evidech 31, 2014 decreased $ 2.3 million, or 2 % tt07.1 million, as compared with the three momthded March 31, 2013 , primarily due to decreased
promotion al costs of $ 7. 8 million, partially séft by an increase in network access expensesdétahigher broadband customer counts.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

($.in thousand) For the three months ended March
$ Increas¢ % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Wage and benefit expens $ 276,860 $ 201574 $ (14,714 (5%
All other operating expens: 252,066 249,925 2,141 1%
$ 528,926 $ 541,499 $ (12,573 (2%
Wage and benefit expenses

Wage and benefit expenses for the three monthslevidech 31, 2014 decreased $ 14.7 million , 8,50 $ 276.9 million, as compared to the threatim® ended March 31, 2013 , primarily due to loa@sts
for compensation resulting from lower average elygdoheadcount combined with lower costs for @exéher benefits, including pension and OP EB egpeas discussed below. Wage and benefit expenses
included $ 0.4 million and $ 2.4 million of sevecarcosts for the three month periods in 201 4 &1d32, respectively .

Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are inclirdedr wage and benefit expenses. Pension and3@B&s for the three months ended March 31, 26142813 were approximately $ 14. 3 million and $
20.6 million, respectively. Pension and OPEB castiide pension and OPEB expense of $ 18. 2 iamiind $ 25.5 million, less amounts capitalized ime cost of capital expenditures of $ 3.9 milland $
4.9 million, respectively.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset vavgesstimate that our 201 4 pension and OPEB ergenwill be approximately $ 65 million to $85 riwt for our current business operations , exclgdi
amounts capitalized into the cost of capital exjtenes , as compared to $ 97.1 million in 201)>&eding the impact of pension settlement costsamdunts capitalized into the cost of capital exiitemes .

All other operating expenses

All other operating expenses for the three montided March 31, 2014 increased $ 2.1 million 186, to $ 252.1 million, as compared with the ¢hreonths ended March 31, 2013, primarily duarto
increase in certain litigation reserves and ineddkeet and maintenance expenses , partially taffséower outside service costs.
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

($.in thousand) For the three months ended March 31,
$ Increase % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Depreciation expens $ 205,516 $ 216,654 $ (11,138 (5)%
Amortization expens 75,891 87,021 (11,130 (13)%
$ 281,407 $ 303,675 $ (22,268 (7)%

Depreciation and amortization expense for the thmeaths ended March 31, 2014 decreased $ 22iBmmbr 7 %, to $ 281.4 million , as comparedttie three months ended March 31, 2013. Amortinati
expense decreased $ 11.1 million due to the lawertization related to the customer base thanhisrized on an accelerated method. Depreciatiperese decreased $ 11.1 million primarily due ftmager net
asset base and changes in the remaining Usefsiof certain plant assets.

We annually commission an independent study to tepitie@ estimated remaining useful lives of our p&ssets. The latest study was complet ed indihetf quarter of 2013 , and after review and ansilgkthe
results, we adopted new lives for certain planetsa s of October 1, 2013. This change had an feriabimpact on depreciation expense for the fitsarter of 2014. Our “composite depreciation rédee"plant
assets was 6.24 % as a result of the study. Viigate depreciation expense of approximately $®@on to $820 million for 201 4 for our currebtsiness operations .

Amortization expense includes the apportionmérihe cost of the intangible assets (primarily oosér base) that were acquired in the 2010 Tramsabtised on an estimated useful life of nine y&arshe
residential customer base and 12 years for thenbssicustomer base, amortized on an acceleratédanetVe anticipate amortization expense of appnaxély $ 285 million for 201 4 for our current sss
operations .

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS

For the three months ended March

(8 in thousands
2014 2013

Acquisition and integration cos $ 10,596 $ -

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company Ibegaincur acquisition and integration costs inreection with the AT&T Transaction. Acquisition ceshclude legal, financial advisory, accountinggue
latory and other related costs. Integration castiude expenses incurred in connection with the ATRansaction to integrate the network and infofaratechnology platforms and to enable other iraégn
initiatives. The Company incurred $10.6 millionagerating expenses , consisting of $1.6 million $d million of acquisition and integrationst®, respectively , related to the AT&T Trangact during
the three months ended March 31, 2014 . We alsgried $ 10.3 million in capital expenditures rethte integration activities during the three mon¢insled March 31, 2014. We anticipate closing th&RT
Transaction during the fourth quarter of 2014.
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INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME , NET / INTEREST EXPENS E / INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the three months ended March

($.in thousand) $ Increase % Increast
2014 2013 (Decrease (Decrease
Investment and other income, 1 $ 1,395 $ 4,654 $ (3,259 (70%
Interest expens $ 170,957 $ 171,420 $ (463 -%
Income tax expens $ 17,189 $ 33275 $ (16,086 (48)%

Investment and other i ncome, net

Investment and other income , net for the threethmended March 31, 2014 decreased $ 3.3 milighl. 4 million, as compared with the threenths ended March 31, 2013 , primarily due to aelese of
$1.7 million in the settlement of customer advareed $ 1.3 million in investment gains associatéith wash received in the first quarter of 2013 @ammection with our previously wri tten-off investnten
Adelphia.

Our average cash balances were $ 917.1 milliorfahd01.2 million for the three months ended Ma8th2014 and 2013, respectively. Our average tesdticted cash balance s were $ 13.4 milliah®n2.7
million for the three months ended March 31, 204d 2013 , respectively.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the three months ended MatcB®l4 decreased $ 0.5 million to $ 171.0ioni) as compared with the three months ended Maict2013 , primarily due to lower average debelsv
resulting from the debt refinancing activities atebt retirements of $ 813.0 million during 2013rtjally offset by the commitment fees on the Bedgan Facility during the first quarter of 201©ur average
debt outstanding was $ 8,124.0 million and $ 8,.66gillion for the first quarter of 2014 and 2018spectively. Our composite average borrowing aatef March 31, 2014 and 201 3 was 7.94 % foheac
period .

Income tax expense
Income tax expense for the three months ended Matc014 decreased $ 16.1 million to $ 17.2ionil as compared with the three months ended Maigi2013 , primarily due to lower pretax income in
2014 . The effective tax rate for the first threentis of 201 4 and 201 3 was 30.4 % and 39.6 Yeotively.

Income taxes for the three months ended March @14 hclude the impact of a $ 2.9 million benefisimg from state tax law changes .

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for which statute s of limitations are expected to exgirring the next twelve months and which wouleéetfour effective tax rate is $ 2.9 million as oaidh 31,
2014 .

We received $ 4.9 million and paid $0.9 millionriet cash taxes during the three months ended Maicl2014 and 2013 , respectively. Our 2013 caséstpaid reflected the continued impact of bonus
depreciation in accordance with the American Taep#elief Act of 2012. Absent any legislative chesigwe expect that in 2014 our cash tax paymentié full year will be approximately $ 130 milfido $1
6 0 million for our current business operationaskjrig into account our estimated pre-close intégmaxpenditures related to the AT&T Transaction .

Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrofifer for the first quarter of 201 4 was $ 39.@iom, or $ 0. 0 4 per share, as compared to $ 4dllion, or $0.0 5 per share, in the first quad&2013 .
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures bout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coafssur business operations due to ongoing investimdj funding activities , including those assoclatéth our pension plan assets . Market risk referthe
potential change in fair value of a financial instrent as a result of fluctuations in interest rated equity prices. We do not hold or issue dékigeainstruments, derivative commaodity instrumeotsother
financial instruments for trading purposes. Assuit, we do not undertake any specific actiorsoteer our exposure to market risks , and we ar@axty to any market risk management agreemenés dian in
the normal course of business . Our primary mai&ktexposures from interest rate risk and equritye risk are as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in inter@tsts relates primarily to the interest-bearingipo of our pension investment portfolio andatetl obligations, and floating rate indebtednessofAVlarch 31,
2014, 95 % of our long-term debt had fixed inserate s with minimal exposure to interest ra@ngfes . We had no interest rate swap agreenmeatsd to our fixed rate debt in effect at March 3114 .

Our objectives in managing our interest rate rigkta limit the impact of interest rate changessamings and cash flows and to lower our overaltdvaing costs. To achieve these objectives, all$ha45.6
million of our outstanding borrowings at March 2D14 have fixed interest rates. In additiom, ndrawn $ 750.0 million revolving credit fagflihas interest rates that float with the LIBO Rates defined.
Consequently, we have limited material future eagsior cash flow exposures from changes in inteatss on our long-term debt. A n adverse changetérest rates would increase the amount thgptayeon
our variable rate obligations and could resultlictuations in the fair value of our fixed rate igakions. Based upon our overal | interest rajgosyre at March 31, 2014 , a near-term changetémeist rates
would not materially affect our consolidated finet@osition, results of operations or cash flows.

At March 31, 2014 , the fair value of our long-tedebt was estimated to be approximately $ 8. ®ohillbased on our overall weighted average bdngwate of 7.94 % and our overall weighted average
maturity of approximately nine years. Adwidrch 31, 2014, there has been no materialgghamthe weighted average maturity applicablewoabligations since December 31, 2013 .

Equity Price Exposure
Our exposure to market risks for changes in ecqéturity prices as of March 31, 2014 is limitestw pension plan assets. We have no other sedaviégtments of any material amount.
The Company’s pension plan assets have in creased$f 1,216.5 million at December 31, 2013 to,#29.5 million at March 31, 2014, an in creat8 d3.0 million, or 1 %. This in crease is a résfl

positive investment returns  of $ 4 0.3 milliand cash contributions of $ 11.6 million , offegtbenefit payments of $38.9 million . An adulital cash contribution of $19.6 million was madeAgril 15,
2014. We expect that we will make contributionsagh and/or other assets to our pension plan ebzippately $100 million in 2014 .
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedi

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervisiot with the participation of our management, udaig our principal executive officer and princigalancial officer, regarding the effectivenessonir
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduile B 13a-15(e) and 15d - 15(e) under the Secuiffichange Act of 1934, as amended) . Based upsrevaluation, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded, as of thedesf the period covered by this report, March 31142, that our disclosure controls and procedwese effective.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial repat
We reviewed our internal control over financialogfing at March 31, 2014 . There have been nogésin our internal control over financial repagtidentified in an evaluation thereof that occurdeding the
first fiscal quarter of 201 4 that materialfjegted, or is reasonably likely to materially affeour internal control over financial reporting.

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Ogtiuns of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issuedipdated Internal Control — Integrated Framewthik 013 Framework) and related illustrative
documents. COSO will continue to make availableitginal Framework during the transition periodexxding to December 15, 2014. The Company cuyretitizes COSO's original Framework , which was
published in 1992 and is recognized as the leagiingance for designing, implementing and conduciingrnal controls over external financial repogtend assessing their effectiveness. The 2013 Rvarkes
expected to help organizations design and implerimi¢etnal control in light of many changes in besis and operating environments since the issudntte @riginal Framework, broaden the applicatién o
internal control in addressing operations and répgiobjectives, and clarify the requirements fetedmining what constitutes effective internal cohtWe plan to adopt the 2013 Framework in 201d &mn not
expect that it will have a significant impact or tBompany.
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Item1. _Legal Proceedings

See Note 1 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Finar8tiements included in Part I, Item 1 of this repdhere have been no material changes to oat fEgceedings from the information provided imit8. “
Legal Proceedings " included in our Annual Reporform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 .

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgditividual, class and putative class actionsjiagiin the normal course of our business covesimgde range of matters and types of claims indgdibut not

limited to, general contracts, billing disputeghts of access, taxes and surcharges , cargumtection, trademark and patent infringememipleyment, regulatory , tort, claims of compatitand disputes
with other carriers . Litigation is subject to eninty and the outcome of individual matters a$ predictable. However, we believe that the wtienresolution of all such matters, after considginsurance
coverage or other indemnities to which we are lextjtwill not have a material adverse effect onftnancial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

T here have been no changes to the Risk Factocsiloled in Part 1, Item 1A. “ Risk Factors "thre Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tleedil year ended December 31, 2013 .

ltem 2. Unreqistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnd Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesritiring the quarter ended March 31, 2014 .

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number Average Price
Period of Shares Purchasi Paid per Shar

January 1, 2014 to January 31, 2!
Employee Transactions (1) 109 $ 4.73

February 1, 2014 to February 28, 2014
Employee Transactions ( 894,073 $ 4.79

March 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014
Employee Transactions (1) 3,361 $ 4.97

Totals January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014
Employee Transactions ( 897,543 $ 4.79

(1) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the sesfngrants under employee stock compensation ptansffset minimum tax withholding obligations theccur upon the vesting of restricted shares.
Compan’'s stock compensation plans provide that the vaishares withheld shall be the average of the highlow price of the Compa’s common stock on the date the relevant transaotioars.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Documen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum:

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe
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By: /s/ John M. Jureller
John M. Jurelle
Executive Vice President an
Chief Financial Office

Date:May 8, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
1, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report Form 10- Q of Frontier Communications Cogpion ;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaadmit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under whiathsstatements were made, not misleading withesp the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information includid this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure contralpeaotedures to be designed under our supervigiognsure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordw@r financial reporting to be designed under aupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the néfabi  of financial reporting and the preparatiaf financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @medented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oéideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changthim registrant's internal control over financggborting that occurred during the registrant'stmecent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the sea of an annual report) that has materially affiscer is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2014 /sl Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
1, John M. Jureller , certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report Form 10- Q of Frontier Communications Cogpion ;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaamit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the ¢ ircumstances under whigthsstatements were made, not misleading witeso the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information includid this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqais presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure corrmlprocedures to be designed under our superyisi@msure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveafiaial reporting, or caused such internal cormtvelr financial reporting to be designed undersupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the féladii financial reporting and the preparatiar financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @medented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oéideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changdhia registrant's internal control over finahaieporting that occurred during the registrantsst recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarten the case of an annual report) that has materiadffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2014 /s/ John M. Jurelle
John M. Jurelle
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly Report of FrentiCommunications Corporation (the "Company"Jrenm 10- Q for the period ended March 31, 2014led fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéthe "Report"), I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, &man and Chief Executive Officer of the Compacsrtify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteslipat to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcD6P2that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S ecuriirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiohthe Company.

[s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
May 8, 2014

This certification is made solely for purpose ofl&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedsrd contained therein, and not for any othepqae.

A signed original of this written statement rgqd by Section 906, or other document authetitigaacknowledging, or otherwise adopting the atgre that appears
in typed form within the electronic version ofsthwritten statement required by Section 906, een provided to Frontier Communications Cafion and will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange i@ission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly Report of FrentiCommunications Corporation (the "Company"Jenm 10- Q for the period ended March 31, 2014led fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohdthe "Report’), I, John M. Jureller , Chiein&ncial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuaot 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to $e@€6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiesiange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiafdhe Company.
[s/ JohnM. Jureller
John M. Jureller

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
May 8, 2014

This certification is made solely for purpose ofl&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstahcontained therein, and not for any other pgepo

A signed original of this written statement riggqd by Section 906, or other document authentigaticknowledging, or otherwise adopting the sigreathat appears in
typed form within the electronic version of thigitten statement required by Section 906, has)be®vided to Frontier Communications Corporatand will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange Casion or its staff upon request.



